MINUTES PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT/TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE MEETING September 26, 2023 4:00 PM

MEMBERS PRESENT: Schafer, Lozinski, Alcorn

MEMBERS ABSENT: None

STAFF PRESENT: Director of Public Works/City Engineer Jason Anderson,

Assistant City Engineer Eric Hanson, City Administrator Hanson, Parks Superintendent

Preston Stensrud, Director of Administraive Services E.J. Moberg

OTHERS PRESENT: Councilmember Schroeder

Call to Order.

Schafer called the meeting to order at 4:00 pm.

1. Approval of the Minutes.

MOTION BY LOZINSKI, SECONDED BY ALCORN to approve the minutes of the August 14, 2023 Public Improvement/Transportation Committee meeting. ALL VOTED IN FAVOR. MOTION PASSED 3:0.

2. Project PK-012: East Lyon Street Trail – Proposed Plan and Design.

The E. Lyon Street Trail project is a proposed project to install 8 to 10 feet wide concrete trail from E. Main Street to Jewett Street. All property owners along the route of the proposed E. Lyon Street Trail project have been mailed an invitation to this Public Improvement/Transportation (PI/T) Committee meeting. The property owners have been invited to this meeting to view the proposed project and offer their perspective regarding the proposed alignment and design considerations for the project.

The proposed alignment for the E. Lyon Street trail is identified in the included exhibits. Where possible, the trail is installed in a manner that provides for a minimum 5-FT grass boulevard area between the trail and the street curb. City staff is identifying an 8-FT wide trail in these areas to create the space needed for a grass boulevard. Between E Street and Nuese Lane, City staff is proposing to shift the street curb line to the north by 6-17 feet (varies) to accommodate the 8-FT trail in the right of way in a manner that minimizes the impact to the adjacent properties. The trail is proposed at 10-FT wide as it progresses to the east through Independence Park and it stays at that width to Jewett Street.

The project was awarded Transportation Alternatives (TA) Grant funds for 2026. The TA Grant is an 80-20 grant to match program that provides funds for pedestrian and bike facilities, historic preservation, Safe Routes to School, and more. The City Council authorized staff to submit application for TA Grant funds at their January 11, 2022 City Council meeting. The City has recent history with this funding source; the 2022 "RRFB project", Project ST-006 School Pedestrian Crossing Signage and Improvements Project was completed using this funding source. In addition, the 2025 C Street-Southview Trail Project is also funded through a TA Grant.

The project cost is estimated at \$743,400 at this time. This is a preliminary estimate, and the cost will be better identified as staff works through a more detailed project design. The TA Grant is \$605,276 with the remaining project costs being the local share. The estimated \$138,124 of local costs are proposed to be paid through the City's Municipal State Aid Street account.

Chairman Schafer opened up the meeting to input and/or questions from the public in attendance. The following questions and comments from the public in attendance were addressed by the Committee and/or City staff.

- Are we going to lose any parking along the street?
- Is the bike path currently on both sides of the street?
- What kind of material will be used? Will it be completely removed or reused?
- Do you have a pedestrian traffic studies or data that would support the need?
- What are we fixing? How many kids walk to school instead of bike?
- Are there police reports/safety reports?
- Are the grants taxpayer money?
- E Lyon to Bruce is really busy during school hours and would not be wise to encourage people to bike down because not a safe intersection.
- Concern of losing mature trees.
- This trail is not the same as Saratoga as a lot of that runs through backyards and not front yards like our front-yard neighborhood.
- Would this lower property values?
- Used to have pedestrian crossing and safety and do not have access to cross-need to go up to Main Street.
- Traffic goes very fast on Lyon Street. Lozinski indicated that street width makes people be more aware and slows traffic.
- Schafer noted Saratoga crossing and J-Turn and progress forward and commitment to connectivity.
- Use of Independence up and still need to cross Bruce/Lyon but not actually stopping traffic problem, and this exacerbates what is already a problem.
- Intersection E Lyon/Bruce going to change intersection?
- Really do appreciate your priority for connectivity, but I can't walk around the block because there's no sidewalks but I have a sidewalk in front of my house, but I can't go to Nuese no sidewalk, I can't go to Parkside no sidewalk, I can't go to Horizon no sidewalk, I can't go down G Street no sidewalk, and there is no sidewalk connectivity.
- All City sidewalks are in public right-of-way. Schafer gave historical information on sidewalks. Lozinski indicated sidewalks are being added on projects and smartsizing streets.
- Schafer commented good sidewalks make good neighborhoods and good neighborhoods make good communities.
- Loss of Holy Redeemer greenspace?
- Does City have policy on the motorized scooters?
- What is the timeline for construction?
- Proud to live in a representative democracy. A survey of the course to give us some quantitative and qualitative data both on the use of the improvement and statistics making it safer and also just who does this represent?
- Connectivity for both pedestrian and bike traffic. Two schools and premier/principal park is probably the most statistical sell with safe foot and bike traffic.
- Will maintenance be an issue? Snow removal on weekends?
- What do neighbors want?
- Signage or maps along trail?
- Surveys that were talked about-we are all in favor of safety and parks and trails, but when comes to our own property and changing property values is a valid concern.
- Data on valuation?
- It would not be difficult too terribly difficult to provide survey to just those properties in the area.

Following input from the public in attendance, Schafer thanked members of the audience for taking the time to be here, for the solid input, it's very appreciated, and know that they are being heard and please continue to do that, because that is what makes these the best projects that we can do.

MOTION BY LOZINSKI, SECONDED BY ALCORN to recommend approval of the provided layout and general design and continue to move forward with the project including the dialogue with and input from the affected property owners. ALL VOTED IN FAVOR. MOTION PASSED 3:0.

3. Project ST-034: Intersection Control Evaluation (ICE) for Intersection of Susan Drive and US 59 Frontage Road.

The intersection of Susan Drive just east of US 59/Main Street is an important and busy intersection in our community. The intersection is quite wide and there are numerous travel lanes designated on each leg of the intersection. The intersection is further troubled by the "free" movements into the intersection coming off Main Street.

The City Engineering Department has been interested in seeking proposals from a consulting engineering firm to help analyze the intersection and to perform an Intersection Control Evaluation (ICE). The purpose of the evaluation will be to recommend geometric solutions for this intersection that improve traffic flow and safety for all users of the intersection. Staff budgeted \$30,000 for this work in the 2023 engineering budget.

At the August 14, 2023 meeting of the Public Improvement/Transportation Committee, City staff received concurrence from the PI/T Committee to seek proposals from engineering consultants to perform and ICE and to offer some design options for geometric improvement at the intersection to help improve traffic flow and safety for all users of the intersection.

On September 15th, proposals were received from SEH and Bolton & Menk to perform this work. The proposals were sent to members of the PI/T Committee for review as well. After review and grading, the highest scoring and lowest cost proposal was submitted by Bolton & Menk in the amount of \$33,773.85. Staff is looking for consultation with the PI/T Committee regarding these proposals.

The Engineering Department budget includes \$30,000 for this work. The low proposal was submitted in the amount of \$33,773.85.

Anderson presented the item and inquired to ensure Committee members received proposals. Lozinski indicated his support of B&M and Anderson confirmed.

MOTION BY LOZINSKI, SECONDED BY ALCORN to recommend that the Public Improvement/Transportation Committee recommended to Council to award the proposal for the Intersection Control Evaluation (ICE) for Intersection of Susan Drive and US 59 Frontage Road to Bolton & Menk, Inc. of Mankato, Minnesota, in the amount of \$33,773.85. ALL VOTED IN FAVOR. MOTION PASSED 3:0.

Other Business.

None.

Adjourn.

MOTION BY SCHAFER, SECONDED BY LOZINSKI to adjourn the meeting. ALL VOTED IN FAVOR. MOTION PASSED 3:0. Meeting adjourned at 5:03 pm.

Respectfully submitted, Lona Rae Konold, Administrative Assistant